
CITY OF BRADENTON 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

March 12, 2014 
8:30 a.m. 

MINUTES 
 
 
The City of Bradenton City Council met in regular session in the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 101 Old Main St., Bradenton, FL, at 8:30 a.m. on Wednesday, March 
12, 2014. 
 
Present: Mayor Wayne Poston; Ward 1 Councilman Gene Gallo; Ward 2 
Councilman Gene Brown; Ward 3 Councilman Patrick Roff; Vice Mayor and Ward 
4 Councilman Bemis Smith and Ward 5 Councilman Harold Byrd. 
 
City Officials: Carl Callahan, City Clerk & Treasurer/Chief of Staff; Michael 
Radzilowski, Police Chief; Claude Tankersley, Public Works Director; William Lisch, 
City Attorney; Chuck Edwards, Fire Chief; and Tim Polk, Planning & Community 
Development Director. 
 
The pre-meeting invocation was given by Shirley Baucom, CEO of Care Net 
Manasota Pregnancy Center. (The City does not endorse the religious beliefs of 
any speaker.) 
 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Poston. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Poston. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS: None 
 
PRESENTATIONS: None 
 
City Clerk Carl Callahan administered the oath to anyone from the public wishing 
to speak. 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS: None 
 



CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a) Minutes: Feb. 12 council meeting. 
b) Minutes: Feb. 26 council meeting. 
c) WCIND grant application – Bradenton Police Department Marine Patrol. 
d) Budget Adjustment - Building Division. 
e) Resolution 14-12: Conveyance of land to Boys & Girls Club. 
f) Public Event: Music in the Park on April 4 and 11 at Riverwalk 

amphitheater.  
g) Change of venue for previously approved public event: Pride Fest 

requesting to move March 22 event from Riverwalk’s Tower Plaza to 
Riverwalk’s Pavilion & Fun Zone. 

h) SF.13.00015: Request of Stantec Inc., agent for WCI Communities, LLC for 
Final Subdivision Plat approval of Tidewater Preserve Plat 6 located at 4700 
Tidewater Preserve Boulevard (zoned PDP). 

i) SF.13.00016: Request of Stantec Inc., agent for WCI Communities, LLC for 
Final Subdivision Plat approval of Tidewater Preserve Plat 5 located at 4700 
Tidewater Preserve Boulevard (zoned PDP). 

 
Councilman Gallo said he received emails in opposition to Item G. He submitted 
printed copies along with his responses to City Clerk Carl Callahan.  
 
MOTION TO APPROVE Consent Agenda Items A-I was made by Councilman Byrd, 
seconded by Councilman Roff and approved 5-0. 
 
BUSINESS/ADVERTISING, PETITIONS, HEARINGS AND COMMUNICATIONS - 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS BY DEPARTMENT HEADS, CITY ATTORNEY AND COUNCIL 
 
ORDINANCE 2959  SECOND READING & PUBLIC HEARING 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BRADENTON, FLORIDA, PERTAINING TO PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 4465 STATE ROAD 64 EAST, BRADENTON, MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS 
OF FACT; PROVIDING FOR AMENDMENT TO THE CITY OF BRADENTON 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT/FUTURE LAND USE MAP (SMALL 
SCALE DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY AMENDMENT CP.13.00031) CHANGING THE FUTURE 
LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM COUNTY RESIDENTIAL-6 TO CITY SUBURBAN 
COMMERCIAL CORRIDOR; PROVIDING FOR APPLICABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 



ORDINANCE 2960          SECOND READING & PUBLIC HEARING 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2950, CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF BRADENTON, FLORIDA BY A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT (LU.13.00054) TO 
CHANGE THE DESIGNATION FROM COUNTY RSF-6 TO CITY SCC FOR THE PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 4465 STATE ROAD 64 EAST. 
 

Mr. Callahan read the legal description of both ordinances and said they could be 
discussed at the same time because they are companion pieces concerning the 
same piece of property but said they will require separate votes.  
 
Mayor Poston opened the public hearing. No one requested to speak in favor or 
opposition. Planning Director Tim Polk said staff and the Planning Commission 
recommend approval of both ordinances. Councilman Gallo said his daughter is 
heavily involved with this property and wanted this noted for the record and City 
Attorney Bill Lisch confirmed that he does not have to recuse himself from voting 
because his daughter is no longer a member of his household. 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE Ordinance 2959 was made by Vice Mayor Smith, 
seconded by Councilman Brown and approved 5-0. 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE Ordinance 2960 was made by Vice Mayor Smith, 
seconded by Councilman Byrd and approved 5-0. 
 
Carl Callahan, City Clerk & Treasurer  
- Police Rank & File contract 
 
Mr. Callahan said the contract approved by the police department’s union members and 
City staff is a contract that works for everyone. He said these were protracted 
negotiations because there were a lot of tough issues. He said the City knew the police 
were looking for salary increases and fully-funded pensions, but the City does not have 
the funds to do both. He said the police have been working with them to come to a 
compromise. He said the City has come a long way with pension reform; the pension 
plan is 80% funded and is a viable plan for the long haul as it stands now. There will be 
some raises in this contract and also places caps on pay raises for longtime officers and 
sergeants. He said the plan is not retroactive. Staff recommends approval. 
 
Mayor Poston commended both sides for negotiating this difficult issue and noted that 
the original vote from the police union was a tie. Mr. Callahan said the final vote was 
approved by two-thirds of those voting. Councilman Roff commended everyone 
involved in tough negotiations and said this agreement is how they will keep the City 
moving forward.  



 
MOTION TO APPROVE the contract was made by Councilman Roff, seconded 
by Councilman Gallo and was approved 5-0. 
 
BUSINESS BY APPOINTMENT – None scheduled. 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
Councilman Gene Gallo, Ward 1: Nothing to report. 
 

Councilman Gene Brown, Ward 2: In regards to violence in the City, he said he has read 
about volunteers from the community hosting marches against violence and working to 
take back their neighborhoods. He commended them and said any help from citizens is 
good and he hopes the City embraces their actions. 
 
Councilman Patrick Roff, Ward 3: Councilman Roff announced that the wrap up of the 
Village of the Arts tapestry meetings is scheduled for 6-9 p.m. March 19. He said the 
Village has been working on this plan for a year and this meeting will unveil what 
they’ve come up with and what is the next step. He encouraged attendance. 
 
Vice Mayor and Councilman Bemis Smith, Ward 4: Vice Mayor Smith said at the last 
meeting he asked for City Attorney Bill Lisch to address the expansion of the One-Stop 
Center for the homeless because he thought the expansion should have come before 
the council for approval. He noted that the plans were approved at the administrative 
level by the Planning & Community Development Department. 
 
City Attorney Lisch said the special exception for the homeless center was site specific. 
The center bought a piece of property next door to its building and its intended use of 
that site is a permitted use. He said it’s not part of the site plan the City approved for 
the original building. But Vice Mayor Smith said he believes this still exceeds their 
intended use, if not illegally then in spirit. He said this could mean business owners 
could keep expanding if they bought adjoining property; Mr. Lisch said yes, if they were 
adding permitted uses. Mr. Polk said staff would investigate the specific, intended uses 
inside the center and the new parcel.  
 
Vice Mayor Smith said he isn’t opposed to the homeless center, but he doesn’t believe 
it’s in the right location. He noted that this area has been targeted as an Entertainment 
District by the City, there is a microbrewery being built there, and it’s ironic that the 
homeless center – where many clients are people struggling with alcohol addiction – is 
also there. He noted that he voted against putting the homeless center here in 2005 
but was on the losing end of a 3-2 vote, and the three councilmembers who voted in 
favor are no longer on the council. He wants to know what this council feels; He 
suggested a motion that the homeless center’s expansion plans, while legal, are still 
bad policy and not a suitable use for this area. Councilman Gallo seconded the motion. 



 
Councilman Byrd questioned whether this is a proper motion and sought clarification on 
what it meant. Mr. Lisch said it would not be a binding motion. Councilman Byrd said 
the best move is to set up meetings among City and County leaders to address the 
homeless issue and they could also discuss if the homeless center is in the best location 
to address the homeless population. Vice Mayor Smith likes the idea but said this was 
already discussed with the County prior to approving the current location of the 
homeless center, but said it could be added that his motion. Councilman Byrd said he 
didn’t intend to add to the motion – he was just making a general suggestion. 
 
Councilman Roff said he understands that there already is a cap on services at the 
homeless center. He said the City’s message has always been if there is a need for 
additional services, the County should help out. He said the homeless center is better 
than the scattering of homeless services that existed prior to the one-stop center but it 
cannot grow at its current site. Councilman Roff said he needs to know if the center has 
expanded services and if it’s a violation of the original agreement. Mr. Callahan said 
even that could raise more discussion because he’s heard various definitions of what 
“expansion” means. 
 
Vice Mayor Smith said the evidence he has seen seems to show that the Planning 
Department has already reviewed the original agreement extensively and determined 
that the homeless center’s new plans did not require City Council approval. He read 
letters from Planning Department officials to back this argument. Councilman Roff said 
perhaps the City needs to draft a detailed, legally binding statement to address these 
issues for the future. 
 
Councilman Gallo, noting that he was the other opposing vote to this location back in 
2005, said he recalls the statement, “If we grow, we go.” He said he agrees with Mr. 
Lisch that the homeless center’s plans are not illegal, but he believes the plans are 
contrary to what the council intended in the original agreement. He said there are 
homeless populations all throughout the county and perhaps another homeless center 
elsewhere, in addition to the current one, might be a solution. 
 
Mr. Polk said planning staff realizes this is a “hot-button” issue and it was reviewed 
carefully. He said prior to the homeless center there was no microbrewery or McKechnie 
Field expansion, but he acknowledged an expansion of a homeless center in an 
Entertainment District would represent a red flag. He admitted he should have brought 
this before council for approval and planning staff would go back and investigate how 
the homeless center is using its permitted space. Mayor Poston said, yes, it should have 
come back to council and said he was not happy when he learned of the expansion.  
 
Vice Mayor Smith restated his motion: Council express its concern with the apparent 
expansion of the One-Stop Center in the City’s Entertainment District. He called the 
motion an “expression of concern” and said it does not declare that City staff erred in 



its approval of the homeless center’s plans. Councilman Gallo, who seconded the 
original motion, said he was OK with this clarification. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Mayor Poston said this is an important discussion. He said business owners in the area 
are also concerned. 
 
Councilman Harold Byrd, Ward 5: Reiterated that he believes Bradenton leaders should 
meet with their counterparts throughout the county to discuss the issue of 
homelessness in Manatee County. 
 
Mayor Wayne Poston: There were 15,000 people at ArtSlam last Saturday, and the 
Mayor called that a major success. He said the Paws-in-Motion event at Riverwalk also 
drew a great crowd as did the Red Sox vs. Pirates Spring Training game that drew 
8,200. Mayor Poston said he had a good conversation with ex-Mayor Bill Evers, who is 
trying to move forward following the recent death of his longtime wife, Jane. 
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS 
 
Carl Callahan: Reiterated his appreciation for both sides in the police contract 
negotiations. He said there was a lot of compromise involved but he said this contract 
brings up and reforms pension. 
 
Chief Edwards: Nothing to report. 
 
Chief Radzilowski: Nothing to report. 
 
Claude Tankersley: FDOT is moving a detour that was originally going to occur outside 
of McKechnie Field on the day of a Pirates game. 
 
Tim Polk: Urged the Mayor to allow staff to start talking to County staff about the 
homeless issue, to which the Mayor agreed, and also said planners need to start talking 
to the County about the No-Kill shelter. 
 
Bill Lisch: Nothing to report. 
 
There being no further business, Mayor Poston adjourned the meeting at 9:47 a.m. 
 
NOTE: This is not a verbatim record. An audio CD or DVD recording of the meeting is available for a fee 
upon request. 
 
City Council Minutes – 3/12/14 Tim McCann 


